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VISION

 We are Botswana’s number 1 development 
financial services partner.

MISSION

To provide innovative financial products and services which 
promote the economic development of Botswana.
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CORPORATE PROFILE

The National Development Bank was established under an Act of Parliament in 1963, to promote the 
economic development of Botswana. NDB is a Government owned institution operating under the control 
of a Board of Directors, appointed by the Minister of Finance and Development Planning.

To implement its mandate the Bank’s focus is provision of loan financing to new and existing undertakings 
falling under the following categories:

Agricultural sector All Agricultural projects including Game farming

Commercial sector Including all retailing, service industry and tourism

Industrial Sector All industrial, Manufacturing, Processing and Mining undertakings

Real Estate Property purchase and Property development for office space, 
Commerce and retail space, Industrial space and Commercial 
residential space.

Human Development Sector Including educational loans and home loans.

The lending limits are periodically reviewed, currently ranging from a minimum of P10 000. The repayment 
periods vary and can go up to 25 years. It has offices in Gaborone, Maun, Francistown and Palapye.

The Bank conforms to its Vision, Mission and Values with the aim to attract and retain a satisfied customer 
base. NDB continues to run on a commercial basis and it is a viable, self sustaining, Development 
Financial Institution.

REGISTERED OFFICE 

Development House, Plot 1123
Main Mall, Gaborone

HEAD OFFICE 
Development House, Queens Road, 
P O Box 225 
Tel: 3952801, Fax: 3974446
Help Desk : 360 9444
www.ndb.bw

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 
KPMG 
Certified Public Accountants 
Plot 67977 Gaborone

BRANCH OFFICES
Francistown 
P O Box 282
Tel: 2416044, Fax: 2416065
  
Maun 
P O Box 453
Tel: 6860316, Fax: 6860645
  
Palapye 
P O Box 10387 
Tel: 4920552, Fax: 4920551
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OUR CORE VALUES

Teamwork
“I help my colleagues to do better and together we support one 
another to deliver the promise to our customer”

Excellence
“I am aware of my performance and I constantly strive to deliver 
better than the last time in everything I do”

Accountability
“I take positive responsibility for planning successful execution 
and delivery of my work”

CustoMer 
Orientation

“I seek first to understand the needs and expectations of my 
customer and I deliver on them”
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NDB Staff hand impressions as commitment towards 
Thobo 2014

�e NDB team is committed to �obo 2014
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WHAT IS THOBO 2014?

The Bank has developed a new corporate strategy which took off at the start of the Financial Year 

2011/12. The development of the new three-year strategy is a result of the culmination of MAMEPE five-

year strategy (2006-2010). The new strategy code named THOBO 2014 will only be for a period of three (3) 

years due to the fact that Government has announced its intention to privatize the Bank immediately.  

The aspiration of THOBO 2014 is to secure market share within the development financial framework. 

This will be done through a number of  strategic initiatives that will support the  mandate of the Bank in 

totality. In particular THOBO 2014 will be geared towards visible support of the Government’s program 

of economic diversification through partnerships with Batswana. Its predecessor MAMEPE had targeted 

small and medium enterprises, THOBO 2014 has widened catchment to cover large undertakings. The 

strategy also recognizes that development in its self is broad and as such human capital will be another 

target in all its clusters. This approach will also ensure diversification of products and create visible 

impact. The business growth and long term profitability of the Bank can only be guaranteed through 

immaculate execution of these activities.

A special keenness of the THOBO 2014 is towards agriculture. With the Government’s drive towards 

food self sufficiency and ultimately poverty eradication, it is clear that much can be done to partner with 

the Government on some if not all economic diversification initiatives. Programs such as ISPAAD will 

continue to be  possible vehicles for productive collaboration towards the nation’s ultimate economic 

diversification and poverty eradication. 

THOBO 2014 will exploit technology to upscale the Bank’s offering as well as its presence. At the core of 

the strategy is a high level stakeholder satisfaction that will ensure that the Bank is effectively positioned 

to enter the commercial environment through its privatization program. Internal stakeholders , our staff 

will play a critical role in supporting the strategy. Therefore, a conscious decision has  been made to 

embark on a culture change management programme with a goal to foster an environment of high 

performance together with rewarding and recognising staff for good performance.



2000

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

The Bank is appointed to set up CEDA.

During the 2001 Budget Session, 
Government announced setting up a Citizen 

Entrepreneurial Development Agency 
(CEDA) which was among other things to 

take over the management of the Financial 
Assistance Policy (FAP) and Micro Business 

Finance (MBF). 

Government introduced Value Added Tax 
of 10%.

 

In his budget speech of February 2003, the 
Honorable Minister of Finance & 

Development Planning, Mr. Baledzi 
Gaolathe, indicated that the Government 

would look into a possible merger of  
National Development Bank with the 

Botswana Savings Bank. 

The year under review saw the Bank 
looking into its continued relevance for the 
foreseeable future.  A five (5) year strategy 

was to be put in place with the  focus on 
customer centricity .With this in mind, it 

was hoped that the next two (2) years will 
see major changes in the way the Bank 

operates.

The five year strategy code named MAMEPE 
was fully implemented. A deliberate move 
towards innovation saw the roll out of ‘fast 

track’ products to serve our customer 
needs. The popular “Ntlhatlosa kwa 

Morakeng” loan was launched . The  Banks 
products extended to human capital 

development .

The Government decided to privatize NDB 
and transaction was to be implemented by 

the Public Enterprises Evaluation and 
Privatization Agency (PEEPA).

The Bank appoints its first female 
Chief Executive Officer since inception.    

The credit crunch and subsequent global 
recession hits the international  financial 

sector.

NDB tapped into the existing NDB001 bond 
with a BWP 65 million tranche.

NDB during the year embarked on a Business 
Continuity Plan project that would see the Bank 

being able to uphold its end of the bargain with its 
customers even in the event of a major disaster.  

The Bank continued to play a major role in the 
execution of the Agricultural Credit Guarantee 

Scheme (ACGS) and the CEDA Credit Guarantee 
Scheme (CEDA CGS). 

The Bank under took an internal Hay Evaluation 
exercise in order to evaluate the current job sizes 

as per the various job descriptions

The Micro Business Finance (MBF) started 
operation on 1st June, 1999.  The scheme  
was a result of the Task Force on Small 
Medium and Micro Enterprises (SMME) 

that was commissioned by Government in 
1997. The Government appointed NDB to 

set up the scheme and manage it under an 
agency agreement.

The Bank implements an Enterprise 
Resource Planning system (ERP)  as part of 
the IT strategy. This application required for 
the identification of an integrated financial 

system.

Since NDB was directly charged with the 
responsibility of setting up CEDA, invariably 
this included its computer environment as 

well. As a short term measure to facilitate the 
urgency with which CEDA was being 

implemented, NDB decided to use its IT 
infrastructure and the Micro Credit Scheme 

loan portfolio management system when 
setting up CEDA.

 

NDB TEN YEAR JOURNEY
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TEN YEAR  INCOME STATEMENT AND BALANCE SHEET

Corporate Profile  

2001/2002 2002/2003 2003/2004 2004/2005 2005/2006 2006/2007 2007/2008 2008/2009 2009/2010 2010/2011

Income Statement

Net Interest income  65,816  76,529  81,988  84,217  83,468  79,400  100,390 111,091.00 126,302.00 130,830.00 

Other income  19,882 9449  8,049  (2,535)  11,708  (3,267)  8,236 14,284.00 14,791.00 17,476.00 

Operating expenses  (20,318)  (25,117)  (28,257)  (32,863)  (32,336)  (39,506)  (43,391) (52,580.00) (53,809.00) (64,171.00)

Charge for impairment 
of advances

 (6,408)  (10,181)  (20,884)  (10,883)  (11,746)  (14,355)  (31,624) (22,043.00) (29,453.00) (35,473.00)

Net Income for the 
year

 58,972  50,680  40,896  37,936  51,094  22,272  33,611 50,752.00 57,831.00 48,662.00 

Balance Sheet

Capital and Reserves  341,710  389,432  425,350  459,838  502,220  511,550  547,356 589,705.00 505,607.00 542,104.00 

Long Term Loans  61,014  96,466  96,549  90,477  227,041  204,423  308,652 433,242.00 392,363.00 335,990.00 

Other liabilities  5,678 18376  20,166 16592  12,237  13,138  11,232 14,214.00 26,406.00 73,677.00 

Capital employed  408,402  504,274  542,065  566,907  741,498  729,111  867,240 1,037,161.00 1,053,617.00 1,077,284.00  

Assets

Advances from Bank 
funds 

 352,436  434,155  454,344  479,982  488,675  643,797  724,491 932,215.00 896,177.00 932,345.00 

Other asets  55,966  70,119  87,721  86,925  252,823  85,314  142,749 104,946.00 157,440.00 144,939.00 

Total Assets  408,402  504,274  542,065  566,907  741,498  729,111  867,240 1,037,161.00 1,053,617.00 1,077,284.00 
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2011 2010

P000 % P000 %

    
    

Value Added     
    

Income earned  181,693 208%  178,347 204%
Cost of interest, goods and Services (58,961) -68% (56,503) -65%
Bad debts provision decrease / (Increase) (35,473) -41% (29,453) -34%

     

Value Added  87,259 100%   92,391 106%

    

    
Value Allocated     

    
To Employees     
Salaries, wages and other benefits  35,232 40%   31,958 35%

    
To Providers of Capital     
Reinvested:     

    
Retained income  36,497 42%  43,373 50%
Depreciation  3,365 4%  2,602 3%

    
    

Distributed:     
    

Dividends  12,165 14%  14,458 17%

     
 52,027 60%   60,433 65%

     

 87,259 100%   92,391 106%

    

Staff  -   40%  -   35%
Shareholders 60% 65%

VALUE ADDED STATEMENT

SHAREHOLDERS 

60%

STAFF

40%

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 20102002

86
92

102
108 108 116 116

139 144

2011

147

VALUE ALLOCATEDNUMBER OF NDB STAFF
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2011

57.8

48.750.8

33.6

22.3

51.1

37.9
40.9

50.6

58.9

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

505.6

542.1

424.2
462.2

398.5
381.7

231.2
276.4

312.8
340.6

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

38%40%
42% 43%

50%

37%

28% 29%
32%

37%

Trends in profit / (Losses) 
Pula millions 

Accumulated Profits / (Losses 
Pula millions 

Overheads as Percentage of income 
Pula millions
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BOARD MEMBERS

Mr. L.V. Seitei 
Board Chairperson

Mrs. F.M. Nteta
Deputy Board Chairperson

Dr. M. Letshwenyo Mr. S. Makosha Mr. J.B. Mosimane

Mr. J. Makwinja Mrs. T.T. Phuthego Dr. I.P. Mogotsi Mr. C. Moapare
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BOARD MEMBERS

Audit Committee HR Committee Transformation Committee

Mr J. Makwinja - Chairperson Mrs T.T. Phuthego - Chairperson Mrs F.M.Nteta - Chairperson

Mrs T.T. Phuthego Dr. I.P. Mogotsi Mr. J. Makwinja

Dr. I.P. Mogotsi Mr. J.B. Mosimane Mrs T.T. Phuthego

Mr. S.M. Makosha Mrs F.M. Nteta Mr. C. Moapare

Mr. C. Moapare   

Credit Committee Tender Committee

Mr. L.V. Seitei - Chairperson Mr. C. Moapare - Chairperson

Mr. J. Makwinja Mr. J. Makwinja

Mr. C. Moapare Dr. M. Letshwenyo

Mr. J.B. Mosimane
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mrs  Lorato C. Morapedi
Chief Executive Officer

Mr  H.O. Mogotsi 
Deputy Chief Executive Officer - 

Shared Services

Ms. B. Mojalemotho
Acting Deputy Chief Executive Officer - 

Operations

Mrs  T.T. Sekga
Chief Finance Officer

Ms. B. Davids 
Director - Internal Audit

Mr. S. Gaelebale
Acting Director -Service Management

Mrs. P. Keabaitse 
Acting Director - Credit Management
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

Client Solutions 

  

Ms. K. Musa Marketing and Communications Manager

Mr. M. Gopolang Regional Manager South

Mr. M. Rebaagetse Regional Manager North

Mrs. Z. Moesi Product Development and Research Manager

   

Credit Management 

  

Ms. G. Taunyane Acting Securities and Debt Recovery Manager

   

General Management Mr. B. Rwelengera Board Secretary

Finance 

  

Mr. B. Gaofiwe Acting Treasury Manager

Mr. N. Kgathego Loans Accounting Manager

Mrs. B. Watlhaga Finance and Administration Manager

   

Service Management 

  

Ms. A. Mpe-Leselwa Human Resources Manager

Mrs. H. Mogobe Information Services Manager

   

 Internal Audit Mr. W. Gombalume Internal Audit Manager
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Bank is committed to a high level of corporate governance practice aligned with the King (111) code 
of ethics. The Banks operating, financial and behavioral guidelines are founded on corporate values . 

Our values are; Teamwork. Excellence, Accountability, CustoMer Focus and are directly linked to the 
pillars of the King (111). These have become the building blocks central to governance issues and direct 
the actions of the Board, Management and Staff.

The Board of Directors have an unswerving commitment to continuous improvement of products, 
services and a conducive work environment which promotes the developmental mandate of the Bank. 
This is achieved successfully through the conscious embracing of ethical standards and sustainability 
reporting. 

The Corporate Governance structure for the Bank comprises the Board, its Sub-Committees and 
Management committees .

MAIN BOARD

The Role of the Board is to set and monitor the strategic functioning of NDB and shall set the direction 
and pattern of good governance in implementing change and in mobilizing and allocating resources of 
NDB. 

Role and responsibilities:
The Board exploits opportunities to enhance shareholder value through the collective wisdom of a •	

balanced Board membership.
The Board effectively represent, and promotes the best interests of the shareholder with a view to •	

maintain and add long-term value to NDB to enable it to achieve the corporate objectives.
The Board is ultimately responsible for and shall take necessary steps to ensure perpetuity of NDB’s •	

going concern status and protection of all its assets, wherever located. 
The Board is responsible for ensuring existence of and implementation of sound and effective •	

internal control systems, risk management and ensuring true and fair presentation of NDB’s affairs 
in the financial statements.
The Board directs, guides and supervises the management of NDB’s activities, assets and its •	

affairs.

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Roles and responsibilities:
Overseeing the integrity of the company’s financial statements and the company’s accounting and •	

financial reporting processes and financial statement audits;
Overseeing the company’s compliance with legal and regulatory requirements ;•	

Overseeing the registered public accounting firm’s (independent auditor’s) qualifications and •	

independence;
Overseeing the performance of the company’s independent auditor and internal audit function; •	

Overseeing the company’s systems of disclosure controls and procedures, internal controls over •	

financial reporting, and compliance with ethical standards adopted by the company;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To maintain an understanding of the concepts on risk management and collect information on the •	

entire risk management of the organization.

HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Roles and responsibilities
To advise the Board of Directors on HR related policies and procedures, monitor and ensure their •	

effective implementation thereof.
To periodically review reports from management on significant changes to the organizational •	

structure and make recommendations to the board.
To review and consider reports from management on Human Resources issues such as Recruitment •	

and selection, Contractual Matters, Training and Development, Succession plans, Reward and 
Recognition etc on a quarterly basis and report to the Board of Directors.
To monitor the implementation of the Human Resources strategy on a quarterly basis and report to •	

the Board of Directors on the progress made against targets relating to key strategy initiatives and 
recommend any necessary remedial actions.

TRANSFORMATION COMMITTEE

The committee’s prime purpose is to ensure that strategy rollout issues that will require the Board’s 
decision are thoroughly debated by the committee before the Board takes a position on them. The 
committee also acts as a reference point by management for quicker turnaround in decisions during the 
strategy rollout period. 

Roles and responsibilities
To review and ensure alignment of the Bank’s business to its strategy.•	

To review the effectiveness of the Operating model in supporting the Customer Value Proposition •	

(CVP) and recommend changes to the Board where appropriate.
To monitor strategy rollout progress against plans and budgets.•	

To provide guidance to management on the overall strategy rollout •	

CREDIT COMMITTEE

The committees report to the Main Board. All recommendations made by the committees are taken to 
the board for ratification.

Roles and responsibilities
To consider and decide on all loan applications which are above Management authorization limit.•	

They consider the appeal process against decisions taken by the CEO.•	

To report to the Main Board on the various loans and business of the Committee. •	

To regularly review NDB portfolio performance against target and market conditions.•	

To review recommended amendments to the Bank’s Credit Policy and recommend to the Board.•	

To regularly review the Bank pricing model and recommend to the Board the minimum and •	

maximum lending rates given the Bank’s risk appetite.
Decide on the Sector Allocations and monitor Management compliance with these at all times.•	
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TENDER COMMITTEE

The Board has established a committee known as the Board Tender Committee whose mandate is to lend 
support and guidance on the Bank’s tendering and procurement. 

The main objective of the Board Tender committee is to ensure that the procurement process is conducted 
in a balanced,  transparent, objective and fair manner.

Roles and responsibilities
To review the NDB Tendering and Procurement Policy•	

To consider and recommend tenders to the Main Board in accordance with the Procurement and •	

Tender Regulations.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

EXCO reports to the CEO and the Board. Should the committee fail to make a decision it is incumbent on 
the CEO to make a final decision.

Roles and responsibilities
Implementation of the Bank’s corporate strategy•	

Business planning•	

Business continuity planning •	

Organisational Performance management•	

Consider recommendations made from the various forums and committees•	

Approval and monitoring of functional strategies•	

Leadership and People management•	

Origination and recommendation of policy issues to the board.•	

ASSET AND LIABILITY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (ALCO) 

ALCO reports to the Executive Committee.

Roles and responsibilities of ALCO
ALCO shall ensure that there are sound Asset and Liability Management policies and procedures in •	

place.  This includes, inter alia; liquidity risk policy, interest rate policy, exchange rate policy, credit 
policy, and contingency funding plan.  ALCO shall implement adequate risk management framework, 
processes and infrastructure to identify and measure, monitor and control the associated market 
risks.
The responsibility of ALCO rests with the Chief Executive Officer, who shall periodically brief the •	

board of directors on the ALCO operations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW 

NDB is certified for ISO 9001:2008. One of the requirements of this standard is to have a management 
review process whose main objective is to review organisational performance. The emphasis of this 
review is on the operations of the Bank as a whole, to ensure that all domains adhere to the agreed 
service standards.

Roles and responsibilities
Driving organizational performance•	

Driving continuous improvement initiatives across the Bank•	

Facilitate and coordinate Process design and implementation & process improvement reviews•	

Query/complaints and feedback management •	

Promotion of awareness of customer requirements throughout the Bank •	

Maintenance of the Bank’s Quality Management (in accordance with requirements of ISO 9001:2008 •	

MS Standard.

FRAUD PREVENTION/MITIGATION
The Bank is aware that in these turbulent times fraud and irregularities are a concern. The Bank has 
a Fraud policy which guides the different ways for Fraud mitigation. Included as part of the policy is a 
whistle blowing mechanism  code  named ‘NDB MOLOMATSEBE’ which enables anonymous reporting of 
all forms of fraud and irregularities. The management of the fraud line has been outsourced to external 
parties to ensure transparency, objectivity and independence. The Bank ensured roll-out of the fraud  
tip-off line to all staff and to the public to promote  integrity and precision of reporting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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CHAIRPERSON’S STATEMENT

INTRODUCTION
On behalf of all the members of the Board of Directors, I am pleased to present to you this overview of 
the Bank’s performance over the past financial period. The 2010/2011 NDB Annual report is presented 
at the end of the last year of the previous corporate strategy termed “Mamepe.”

This year has marked the end of the Bank’s 5 year strategy whilst also ushering in the creation of a new 
corporate strategy for the next strategic period. All of this has been against the background of a slow 
recovery of the economy from the recent global recession and a privatization process which seems to 
have commenced in earnest this year. Despite the challenge to remain substantially profitable during 
this period, the Bank has managed to turn out a relatively good performance.

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT
The economy has been gradually coming out of the recession and this was an opportunity for growth 
for the Bank and the financial sector of Botswana as a whole. The economy experienced quite a positive 
rate of growth over the past financial year, due mostly to the steady recovery of the mining sector, 
whereas the rest of the economy grew at a significantly slower rate during this reporting period. There 
was nonetheless significant growth in sectors such as Agriculture, Trade and Construction. This has 
accordingly seen the Bank maintaining a relatively high percentage of concentration in its agricultural 
and business loan portfolios.

Mr. L.V. Seitei  | Board Chairperson
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CHAIRPERSON’S STATEMENT

Poverty reduction remained a key focus for Government during the 2010/2011 financial period, to the 
extent that it has shifted from a poverty reduction standpoint to a total poverty eradication objective. In 
support of such an ambitious intent, the Bank strives to empower the citizens of this country to become 
financially self reliant and enterprising as a necessary means towards self sustenance and economic 
empowerment. Government has instituted several anti-poverty programmes in an effort to address this 
poverty eradication objective. 

National Development Bank has helped to facilitate this effort through the provision of financial 
assistance to the beneficiaries of programmes such as the Self Help Housing Agency programme 
(SHHA), the Integrated Support Programme for Arable Agriculture Development (ISPAAD) and the 
Livestock Management and Infrastructure Development (LIMID) programs. The Bank also continues to 
place particular importance on employment creation in loan assessment as a means of ensuring that 
basic financial viability is coupled with the advancement of the Bank’s mandate towards the economic 
development of Botswana.

The privatization of National Development Bank is ongoing and we have remained an eager partner 
to Government with regard to its intention to privatize the Bank. PEEPA has presented the Bank 
with a comprehensive roll out plan and accompanying timeline for the Bank’s privatization process. 
Representatives of the Bank and Staff Union are expected to participate in most of the fora that have been 
created and we thus anticipate a very collaborative process that shall bring about the intended benefits 
of privatization.  

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
The Bank reported a comprehensive income of P48.7 million as compared to P57.8 million from the previous 
year, marking a reduction of 15.76%.  The marked reduction is attributable primarily to the reduction of 
interest income due to lowered interest rates that were intended to respond to customer requirements 
and move towards increasing the Bank’s client base.  The Bank has also expended considerable resources 
this year in an attempt to attain greater process efficiency and product enhancement.

The above notwithstanding, compared to the previous year, there has been a 2.25% growth in assets 
from P1, 053.6 million to P1, 077.3 million. There has also been an increase in total equity by 5.16% from 
P634.8 million in the previous period to P667.6 million. 

The Bank will pay a dividend of 25% of its comprehensive income to the Botswana Government as it has 
been doing consistently now for several years. This will amount to P12.165 million. 

Despite a decline in overall profit, NDB continues to operate as a viable and profitable organization that 
is constantly evolving in order to better serve its clientele and advance the economic development of 
Botswana. Our corporate strategy going forward is also borne out of this basic intent. As we proceed 
closer towards privatization, we are confident therefore that we will deliver to our stakeholder a financially 
viable organization that is suited to and prepared to operate as a fully commercialized entity.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
In a bid to further enhance its oversight structures, the Bank has introduced a Credit Committee to 
oversee the function of loan approval. The Committee is also charged with providing guidance on other 
general issues of credit and arrears management as well as advising the Board on matters hinging on the 
quality of the Bank’s loan book generally.
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CHAIRPERSON’S STATEMENT

The Bank has a Board Charter that espouses the concepts of transparency, integrity and accountability 
in the proceedings and conduct of the Board and its respective members. This period has seen through 
the review of the Bank’s fraud policy to ensure its continued applicability and effectiveness in guarding 
against the commission of acts of fraud within the organization. The Board also commenced an exercise 
to identify an appraisal tool to assess the performance of the Board of Directors as a further means of 
enhancing corporate governance.

The Bank has been ISO 9001:2008 certified since 1997 and it continues to pass all its annual audits that 
see it being ISO recertified year after year.

THE NEW CORPORATE STRATEGY 
The end of this reporting period marks the beginning of the Bank’s new corporate strategy, dubbed 
‘THOBO 2014” which is intended to endure for the next 3 years. The 3 year period is intended to tie in 
with the Government’s intended date of completion of the NDB Privatization process. During this initial 
period, the Bank has seen it fit to expend considerable time and resources in readying the organization to 
deliver on this new strategy. The focus has been to ensure that the Bank’s staff, who are the real drivers 
of the strategy, are adequately equipped and orientated to successfully implement this strategy. 

The first year of implementation of the strategy will therefore be dominated by efforts towards corporate 
culture realignment and external stakeholder satisfaction. I strongly believe that these endeavours shall 
lay a concrete foundation for the fulfilment of Thobo 2014.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
I wish to thank the CEO of the Bank, Mrs. Lorato Morapedi, who has taken up the reigns of the organization 
with the utmost of speed and conviction. I look forward to her continued robust and dedicated management 
of the Bank and trust that it will only yield positive results going forward. My gratitude similarly goes to 
our management team and all employees of the Bank whose commitment and relentless focus on the 
strategy helped to make the objectives real and achievable.

I wish to express my most sincere gratitude to our Board members, collectively and individually for their 
unwavering commitment towards the Bank. In so doing, I also wish to bid farewell to Mrs. Mosadinyana 
Nthomiwa who left the Board of Directors during this particular period. I am confident that the support, 
sponsorship and guidance that the Board has provided to National Development Bank will continue into 
the next chapter of the Bank’s journey towards fulfilling its mandate. 

Mr. L.V. Seitei
Board Chairperson
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NDB beneficiaries: Maanege Settlement.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

INTRODUCTION
The end of this financial year marks the closure of the 
bank’s 5 year strategy termed “Mamepe”. This was the 
first comprehensive corporate strategy that the Bank 
has developed and implemented. Although I arrived at 
the twilight of the strategy period, it is quite apparent that 
the  strategy served as an invaluable learning experience for all 
members of staff, Management and the Board itself. 

We are now poised to embark along a new three year strategic 
period dubbed “Thobo 2014.” With this strategy the Bank’s 
vision is to be “Botswana’s Number 1 Development Financial 
Services Partner.” Parallel to the implementation of this strategy 
is the rebounding economy and a commitment from Government 
towards commercializing the Bank’s operations through the 
process of privatization. We view these factors with extreme 
optimism and believe that they auger well for the continued 
growth of the Bank and the financial sector of Botswana as a 
whole.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
For the year under review the Bank reported comprehensive 
income of P48.7 million a 15.76% reduction in comparison to 
the previous year comprehensive income of P57.8 million. The last 
financial period has not been a vibrant one with the economy only recently 
making discernible levels of recovery from the recent economic recession. 
Loans and advances increased by 4.04%, however, a lower increase in 
interest income at only 0.4% negatively affected the Bank’s performance. 
There was an increase in administration expenses and personnel expenses 
as the Bank implemented various initiatives to improve efficiencies and 
customer satisfaction. 
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

The Bank’s statement of financial position remains solid with a 2.25% growth in total assets from P1, 
053.6 million in March 2010 to P1, 077.3 million in March 2011. Long term borrowings reduced by 13.89% 
whereas total equity increased by 5.16% from P634.8 million in the previous period to P667.6 million in 
March 2011.

The Bank’s capital adequacy ratio at 63% is substantially above the Bank of Botswana’s requirement of 
15%. 

OPERATIONS 
National Development Bank undertakes its mandate of providing development financial assistance in the 
following sectors of the economy:

Agriculture including Game Farming•	
Commerce including Retail, Service Industry & Tourism•	
Manufacturing and Industrial projects•	
Real Estate - Property Purchase and Property Development.•	
Human Capital Development •	

The Bank’s operational activities are achieved through the integration of the Client Solutions and Credit 
Risk Management functions.

Client Solutions Domain is primarily tasked to determine customer needs, develop diverse products 
and services, proactively market and sell to identified segments. The solutions are in the form of newly 
developed products and services, repackaged/enhanced products and services, channels through 
which to serve the products and an effective Marketing & Branding strategy to position the Bank and 
promote the uptake of such offerings.  The Domain does this by integrating the roles of Marketing and 
Communications and Research and Development and Sales Execution. 

Product Research and Development 
For the past financial period the Bank conducted an extensive review of its existing loan facilities with 
emphasis on making the facilities more accessible to customers. This resulted in the Bank increasing the 
maximum limit on loan amounts, increasing the loan repayment period as well as relaxing the interest 
rate charges. This was noted in the Bonno Home loan, Temo Bokamoso Loan and the Nthuta school fees 
loan facilities.

Marketing and Communications
The Bank recognizes the need for active communication and outreach to its customers through 
participation in industry activities such as Trade fairs; Agricultural shows; farmers’ days; Business forum 
Presentations; Career fairs; School open days and sponsorships.   It also promoted itself through various 
media and interactive events, to improve the awareness of its offerings and the uptake of the products 
and services.  

The website www.ndb.bw, continues to enhance the information dissemination drive to the customers 
and entire public. The Bank is currently realigning its brand positioning to the new corporate strategy. 
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

 

Portfolio Performance
In line with its mandate of providing development financial assistance in the different sectors, the bank’s 
sales performance for the period under review totaled P258 million, to both the business sector and the 
human capital development section, as follows: 

By Sector

The Bank’s agricultural loans continue to constitute the Bank’s biggest portfolio. This portfolio covers 
products such as Ntlhatlosa Kwa Morakeng; Temo Bokamoso, Crop farming including facilities under 
the ISPAAD program; Water and Farm development; and pastoral farming.  

Collaborative Alliances
In its endeavor to add value to the services offered to its customers, the Bank entered into partnerships 
with other institutions, and continues to work with them in order to make it easier and more convenient 
for its customers to operate their various business operations. 

Collaborative alliances have been developed with Local Enterprise Authority (LEA) and Botswana 
Agricultural Marketing Board (BAMB). The Bank continues to pursue partnerships with other sectors of 
the economy to enhance its service delivery. 

The Bank acts as Agent to Government in running some economic initiatives as and when it is 
engaged.  

Currently NDB continues to manage the FMD Relief Fund that was established by Government following 
the outbreak of Foot and Mouth Disease in the Ngamiland area. To access loans under the Fund, each 
farmer was allowed to pledge up to 30 cattle, and each was deemed to be equivalent to P1 500, therefore 

52% AGRICULTURE

4% RETAIL16% PROPERTY

16% MORTGAGE

2% INDUSTRIAL

1% NTHUTA

8% COMMERCIAL
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It takes a development bank to grow a business
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

loans ranged from P1 500 to a maximum of P45 000 per farmer. The number of farmers assisted over the 
period was 5 723 amounting to a total of P105 305 000.00. 

There are still challenges regarding the management and eradication of the disease in the area, as such 
the business environment does not effectively facilitate sale of cattle in order to settle the loans.

The Integrated Support Program for Arable Agriculture Development (ISPAAD), which is a seasonal loan 
scheme, is also administered by the Bank. A total of 26 farmers were approved loans amounting to 
P28.8 million were under the ISPAAD programme for seasonal input requirements during this financial 
period.

Another endeavor, Agriculture Credit Guarantee Scheme (ACGS), is a scheme meant to assist arable dry 
land farmers during periods of drought and other natural disasters that befall this sector. Farmers pay a 
premium of 5% and NDB pays on their behalf another 5% based on their annual installment. The farmers 
only benefit when Government has declared drought to the tune of 85% of the installment due within the 
respective ploughing season. During this reporting period, the total value of accounts that participated in 
the scheme was 241 valued at P62, 594, 457.

Social Responsibility Initiatives
As an unchanging principle, corporate social responsibility remains a key focus for the Bank. Our 
social responsibility program covered Health, Education, Sports and Culture, Youth groups and socially 
disadvantaged groups.  

Return on Shareholder Funds
NDB continues to be a commercially viable undertaking, creating good investment returns for its sole 
shareholder, the Government. As part of its commitment to create value for the shareholder, the Bank 
pays annual dividends to the tune of 25% of its net profit to the Government.  As at March 2011, the Bank 
declared a dividend amounting to P12, 165,000 allocated as P10, 340,000 payable to the Government and 
withholding tax of P1, 825,000 paid to Botswana Unified Revenue Service (BURS). The Bank’s return on 
equity (ROE) as at 31 March 2011 was 7.29%.

SHARED SERVICES

Human Capital
The Bank highly acknowledges that its workforce is its most important resource. During the Financial 
Year 2010/11 it continued as it has in previous years of Mamepe to deploy plans that help to harness the 
full potential of its workforce. A staff satisfaction and engagement survey conducted during the year to 
determine just how much work needs to be done to reach the desired goals of productivity indicates that 
a lot is yet to be done to have the right environment.

Some of the initiatives undertaken to deal with the need to improve level of satisfaction and engagement 
include; revamped Conditions of Service, Development of HR Strategy, Engagement sessions in the 
closure of the previous strategy and improved communication during the formation of the new strategy. 
The Bank also spent more than P1.2 million in training and development.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

Twenty two (22) management staff attended a personal and leadership development program referred 
to as “Investment in Excellence” offered by The Pacific Institute. A review of the program indicates that 
the program is effective as it is meant to promote efficacy and personal growth. For the rest of the staff 
the training was targeted at dealing with gaps identified through performance assessment as well a 
personal growth development.

A marginal increase in the Bank’s staff compliment, from 144 to 147, was experienced during this period. 
That notwithstanding, the Bank assisted twelve interns with job placements through the Government 
Internship Program, seven of whom have since secured permanent employment. Out of these seven, 
four were employed by the Bank itself and three were employed elsewhere.

Information Technology
The significant increase in loan accounts experienced during the last strategy period and the agility 
presently required in order to become the Number 1 partner in the Development Finance market, 
will require a significant increase in the Bank’s technological capability. The Government’s decision 
to proceed with the Bank’s privatization suggests that the Bank should position itself for full scale 
commercialization, which will require a significantly higher level of automation and hence the Bank has 
taken a decision to replace the current system with a more robust core banking system.

The Bank has commenced in earnest along a quest to become Botswana’s No.1 development financial 
services partner, and will continue to provide products and services that manifest this ambition.

Lastly, I would like to express my appreciation to the entire NDB team for the high level of commitment to 
the Bank as well as the Board of Directors for its support and guidance over this past financial period.

Lorato C. Morapedi

Chief Executive Officer
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILTY REPORT
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

We believe in investing in projects with the future in mind hence, 
our involvement in projects that support sustainability of the 

economy and other resources for future generations. 
We believe that for NDB to find success and growth 
in today’s marketplace, it must become a relevant 
part of communities.

NDB GROUP PROJECTS 

The Bank supported the following ;
BOCAIP Molepolole : Bana Ba Keletso in Molepolole is a 
national level faith based non-Governmental organisation 
that deals with HIV challenges the Christian way. The Centre 

is the only one of its kind in Molepolole and has a pre-school which is not used to its full 
capacity because of shortage of qualified teachers. It also has a state of the 
art building that is well equipped that admits 30 orphans 
and vulnerable children. The 
NDB CEO and team donated 
a BWP 12, 000.00 cheque to 
pay the Teacher’s salaries  
and engaged in a cleanup 
campaign in the Molepolole 
village . 

Maanege: The NDB 
team proceeded to 
Maanege Lands where 
we donated blankets 
and clothing items 
to six children who 

were recently 
o r p h a n e d . 
The caretaker of the six orphans 
barely survives to sustain the children with her meagre 
wage as a domestic worker. An afternoon was spent with 
the Family to give them encouragement  and support. This  
is the first phase for the Bank and plans are underway 
to ensure sustainability  and a real change 
in the socio 
economic life 
of this family.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

Encouraging Innovativeness:
The Bank continues to encourage aspiring entrepreneurs 
who approach NDB for funding purposes to craft innovative 
sound business plans that will set them apart . Innovative 
ideas will see sound business practises flourish and in turn 
create employment into the communities. For this “circle 
of life” to be endless, we at NDB saw the significance in 
being the guarantor of the LEA SMME- Most Innovative 
Exhibitor. The overall winner was rewarded with a prize 
worth BWP 25,000.00 that will enable them to boost their 
working capital.

Strategic partnership to eradicate poverty
NDB supports Government programs and Vision 2016 pillars. The Bank partnered with Ministry of 
Agriculture and regional Councils to empower communities through sustainable Backyard Gardening 
projects. So far the sum of Bwp100,000 has been pledged to support this project across the country.

BRANCH COMMUNITY PROJECTS:
Branches are  encouraged to identify  local initiatives in their communities 

to support. These 
initiatives are both 
cash /monetary and 
or in kind. The most 
important aspect 
at branch level 
is the fact that 
each member 
of staff gets to 
spend time with 
the community  
through a 
hands-on 
approach. In true spirit of Vision 2016, 
this approach has allowed our staff to appreciate 
some of the challenges faced by our people. 

The Francistown Branch made donations in the form of clothing 
collected by staff and blankets to their 
identified beneficiary at Ditladi village. A 
village 10-15km from Francistown.
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NDB football team in action.
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The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements, comprising the statements of financial position, comprehensive income, changes in equity 
and cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2011, and the notes to the financial statements, and a summary 
of significant accounting policies in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in 
the manner required by the National Development Bank Act No. 74:05 of Botswana.

The Board of Directors’ responsibility includes: 
Designing, implementing and maintaining internal control systems relevant to the preparation and •	
fair presentation of these financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error; 
Selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; •	
Making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.•	

The Board of Directors responsibility also includes maintaining adequate accounting records and an 
effective system of risk management as well as supplementary schedules included in these financial 
statements.

The Board of Directors has made an assessment of the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern and 
has no reason to believe that the business will not be a going concern in the year ahead.

The Auditor is responsible for reporting on whether the annual financial statements are fairly presented 
in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.

Approval of the Annual Financial Statements:
The Annual Financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 31 August 2011 and are 
signed on their behalf by:

 
Mr. L.V. Seitei Mr. J. Makwinja  
Chairman, Board                                      Chairman, Audit Committee

Directors’ approval of the Financial Statements
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Independent Auditors Report 
For the year ended 31st March 2011

Report of the independent auditors to the Minister of Finance and Development 
Planning pursuant to Section 19 of the National Development Bank Act (Chapter 
74:05)

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of National Development Bank, set out on pages 
34 to 71, which comprise the statement of financial position at 31 March 2011, and the statements of 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance with the National 
Development Bank Act (CAP74:05).

This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making 
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Chartered Accountants
Audit
Plot 67977, Off Tlokweng Road,
Fairground Park
PO Box 1519, Gaborone, Botswana

Telephone +267 391 2400
Fax +267 397 5281
Web http://www.kpmg.com/
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Independent Auditors Report 
For the year ended 31st March 2011

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the financial position of 
National Development Bank as of 31 March 2011, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner 
required by the National Development Bank Act (CAP74:05).

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with section 19 of the National development Bank Act (Chapter 74:05), we confirm that:

the Bank has kept accounts of transactions to the satisfaction of the Minister and such accounts, •	
documents and information as required were presented for Auditing;
we are satisfied to the existence of cash and securities and in our opinion, the Bank has kept proper •	
books of accounts with which the financial statements are in agreement.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants 
Gaborone

Partner: Gerard Devlin
Practice number: 19960060.23
Date: 31 August 2011 

International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.
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Statement of financial position
as at 31st March 2011

Notes 2011 2010

P’000 P’000

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1 60 238 35 843

Investment securities 2 12 460          52 198 

Loans and advances 5 932 345 896 177 

Investment properties 6 15 000  13 440 

Property plant and equipment 7 43 158 44 490 

Other investments 3 1 732  2 388

Other assets 4 12 351 9 081

Total assets 1 077 284 1 053 617

Liabilities and equity

Equity 

Un-recallable capital 8 77 689  77 689 

Reserves 9.1 35 659  37 094 

Dividend reserve 9.2 12 165  14 458  

Retained income 542 104  505 607 

Total Equity 667 617 634 848

Liabilities

Bank overdraft 10 54 934  13 596

Long term borrowings 11 335 990  392 363 

Provisions 12 724  724 

Other liabilities 13 18 019  12 086 

Total liabilities 409 667 418 769

Total Equity and Liabilities 1 077 284 1 053 617
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Notes 2011 2010

P’000 P’000

Interest income 14 164 217  163 556 

Interest expense 15 (33 387)  (37 254) 

Net interest income 130 830 126 302

Fees and commission income 16 11 197 10 728

Net trading income 142 027 137 030

Other income 17 6 279 4 063

Operating  income 148 306 141 093

Personnel expenses 18 (35 232) (31 958)

Depreciation and amortisation 19.1 (3 365) (2 602)

Impairment of investments 19.2 (760) -

Other expenses 19.3 (24 814) (19 249)

Charge for impairment of advances 20 (35 473) (29 453)

Profit for the period 48 662 57 831

Other comprehensive income

Fixed asset revaluation (1 435) -

Total comprehensive income for the period 47 227 57 831

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31st March 2011
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31st March 2011

Notes
Unrecallable

capital

Fixed
Property

Revaluation
reserve

Dividend
reserve

General
Risk 

reserve

Retained
Income

Total

P’000 P’000 P’000 P’000 P’000 P’000

Balance at 1 April 2009 77 689 27 412 12 688 9 682 462 234 589 705

Total comprehensive income for the period - - - - 57 831 57 831

Transactions with owners, recorded directly 
in equity

Dividend paid 9.1 - - (12 688) - - (12 688)

Proposed dividends 9.1 - - 14 458 - (14 458) -

Balance at 31 March  2010 77 689 27 412 14 458 9 682 505 607 634 848

Profit for the period

Transactions with owners recorded directly in 
equity

- - - - 48 662 48 662

Net current year revaluation - (1 435) - - - (1 435)

Dividend paid 9.1 - - (14 458) - - (14 458)

Proposed dividend 9.1 - - 12 165 - (12 165) -

Balance at 31 March 2011 77 689 25 977 12 165 9 682 542 104 667 617
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Statement of Cash Flow
for the year ended 31st March 2011

Notes 2011 2010

P’000 P’000

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income for the year 48 662 57 831

Adjustments for:

Depreciation 7 3 365 2 602

Impairment of other  investments 3 760 -

Gain on disposal of plant and equipment 17 (42) (78)

Gain on disposal of investment property 17 - (60)

Unrealised exchange losses 17 5 228

Net impairment loss on loans and advances 20 35 473 29 453

Interest expense 15 33 387 37 254

Net gain on investment securities at fair value through statement of comprehensive income 17 (1 468) (1 184)

Net cash inflow before changes in operating assets and liabilities 120 142 126 046

Change  in investment securities 39 738 (40 563)

Change in loans and advances to customers (71 641) 6 585

Change in other assets (3 270) (3 292)

Change in other liabilities and provisions 5 933 (1 404)

Cash out flow from operating assets and liabilities (29 240) (38 674)

Net cash generated from operating activities 90 902 87 372

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of investment properties (92) (46)

Acquisition of other investments (104) (35)

Proceeds from  sale of investment properties - 360

Acquisition of property and equipment 7 (3 473) (2 727)

Proceeds from  sale of property and equipment 42                       112

Net cash used in investing activities (3 627) (2 301)

Cash from financing activities

Interest paid on financing activities 15 (33 387) (37 254)

Repayment of debt securities (56 373) (41 107)

Dividends paid 9.1 (14 458) (12 688)

Net cash (used)/generated in financing activities (104 218) (91 049)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (16 943) (5 978)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 22 247 28 225

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 30 5 304 22 247
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Significant Accounting Policies
for the year ended 31 March 2011

REPORTING ENTITY
National Development Bank (“the Bank”) is a bank 
domiciled in Botswana. The address of the Bank’s 
registered office is National Development Bank, 
P.O. Box 225, Gaborone. The Bank is primarily 
involved in corporate and retail lending activities.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRSs) and the National Development 
Bank Act.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
The financial statements have been prepared on 
the historical cost basis except for the following:

investment properties are measured at fair •	
value, and
financial instruments at fair value through •	
profit or loss are measured at fair value.

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY
These financial statements are presented in 
Botswana Pula, which is the Bank’s functional 
currency. Except as indicated, financial information 
presented in Botswana Pula has been rounded to 
the nearest thousand.

SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
The preparation of financial statements in 
conformity with IFRSs requires management to 
make judgements, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of policies and reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities, income 
and expenses. The estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on historical experience 
and various other factors that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances, the results 
of which form the basis of making the judgements 
about carrying values and liabilities that are not 
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results 
may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are 
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period 

in which the estimate is revised and in any future 
periods affected.

Information about significant areas of estimation 
uncertainty and critical judgements in applying 
accounting policies that have the most significant 
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial 
statements are discussed in note 27.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The specific counterparty component of the total 
allowances for impairment applies to claims 
evaluated individually for impairment and is 
based upon management’s best estimate of the 
present value of the cash flows that are expected 
to be received. In estimating these cash flows, 
management makes judgements about the 
counterparty’s financial situation and the net 
realisable value of any underlying collateral. 
Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits, 
the workout strategy and estimate of cash 
flows considered recoverable are independently 
approved by the Credit Risk Function.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances 
cover credit losses inherent in portfolios of loans 
and advances and held-to-maturity investment 
securities with similar credit risk characteristics 
when there is objective evidence to suggest that they 
contain impaired loans, but the individual impaired 
items cannot yet be identified. A component of 
collectively assessed allowances is for country 
risks. In assessing the need for collective loan loss 
allowances, management considers factors such 
as credit quality, portfolio size, concentrations, 
and economic factors. In order to estimate the 
required allowance, assumptions are made to 
define the way inherent losses are modelled and to 
determine the required input parameters, based 
on historical experience and current economic 
conditions. The accuracy of the allowances 
depends on how well these estimate future cash 
flows for specific counterparty allowances and 
the model assumptions and parameters used in 
determining collective allowances.

Determining fair values
The determination of fair value for financial assets 
and liabilities for which there is no observable 
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Significant Accounting Policies
for the year ended 31 March 2011

market price requires the use of valuation 
techniques as described in accounting policy 
on financial instruments below. For financial 
instruments that trade infrequently and have little 
price transparency, fair value is less objective, and 
requires varying degrees of judgement depending 
on liquidity, concentration, uncertainty of market 
factors, pricing assumptions and other risks 
affecting the specific instrument.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies set out below, have been 
consistently followed in all material respects and 
comply with International Financial Reporting 
Standards.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the 
statement of financial position at cost or valuation 
less related accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures 
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of 
the asset.

Land and buildings are fair valued, at the discretion 
of the Board of Directors, by independent firms 
of professional valuators using the open market 
value method. Any accumulated depreciation at 
the date of the revaluation is eliminated against 
the gross carrying amount of the asset and the 
net amount is restated to the re-valued amount of 
the asset. Any revaluation increase arising on the 
revaluation of such land and buildings is credited 
to the property revaluation reserve, except to the 
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for 
the same asset previously recognised in profit or 
loss, in which case the increase is credited to profit 
or loss to the extent of the decrease previously 
charged. A decrease in carrying amount arising 
on the revaluation of such buildings is charged 
to profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the 
balance, if any, held in the property revaluation 
reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that 
asset.

Depreciation is calculated on the difference 
between cost or fair value and residual value 
of the asset and is charged to the statement of 
comprehensive income over the lives of the assets, 

using the straight line method.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:
Buildings  50 years
Motor vehicles  3 years
Office equipment and furniture  2 - 5 years
Depreciation is not provided on land

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual 
values are reassessed at the reporting date.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and 
equipment have different useful lives, they are 
accounted for as separate items of property, plant 
and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by 
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and 
are included in the statement of comprehensive 
income. When re-valued assets are sold, the 
appropriate portion of the revaluation reserve is 
transferred to retained earnings on disposal.

Repairs and maintenance are charged to the 
statement of comprehensive income during 
the financial period in which they are incurred. 
The cost of major renovations is included in the 
carrying amount of the asset when it is probable 
that future economic benefits of the existing asset 
will flow to the Bank.

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed 
for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount 
may not be recoverable.

SOFTWARE
Software acquired by the Bank is stated at cost 
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure on software assets is 
capitalised only when it increases the future 
economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to 
which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed 
as incurred.

Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 
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the software, from the date that it is available for 
use. The estimate useful life of software is three 
years.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Investment properties are those which are 
held either to earn rental income or for capital 
appreciation or for both. Investment properties 
are stated at fair value through profit or loss. Gains 
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of 
investment property are included in net income 
for the period in which they arise. An external, 
independent valuation expert, having an appropriate 
recognised professional qualification and recent 
experience in the location and category of property 
being valued, values the portfolio at least annually. 
The fair values are based on market values, being 
the estimated amount for which a property could 
be exchanged on the date of valuation between a 
willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length 
transaction after proper marketing wherein the 
parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently 
and without compulsion.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair 
value of investment property are included in net 
income for the period in which they arise. Rental 
income from investment property is accounted for 
as described in the accounting policy for revenue 
recognition.

OTHER INVESTMENTS
The Bank classifies other investments as either 
held-to-maturity or available-for-sale assets.

Held-to-maturity investments
Non-derivative investment securities with fixed or 
determinable payments, where management has 
both the intent and the ability to hold to maturity, 
are classified as held-to-maturity.

Held-to-maturity investments are carried at 
amortised cost, using the effective interest method, 
less any provision for impairment.

A financial asset is impaired if its carrying amount 
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Available-for-sale investments
Non-derivative investment securities intended to 
be held indefinitely, which may be sold in response 
to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, 
exchange rates or equity prices, are classified as 
available for sale.

The Bank initially recognises unquoted investment 
securities at cost. All other available-for-
sale investments are carried at fair value. It 
subsequently re-measures available-for-sale 
financial assets at fair value based on prevailing 
market prices.

Unrealised gains and losses arising from 
changes in the fair value of instruments classified 
as available-for-sale are recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive income. When 
these instruments are disposed of or impaired, 
the related accumulated fair value adjustments 
are included in the statement of comprehensive 
income as gains and losses from investments.

ADVANCES AND IMPAIRMENTS FOR CREDIT 

LOSSES

Originated loans
The Bank classifies loans as ‘originated’ where 
it provides money directly to a borrower with no 
intention of trading the receivable. Originated 
loans are carried at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate method. Interest calculated 
using the effective interest method is recognised 
in the statement of comprehensive income. Third 
party expenses, such as legal fees or mortgage 
origination fees, incurred in securing a loan are 
treated as part of the transaction.

All loans are recognised when cash is advanced to 
borrowers.

Impairment
At each reporting date the Bank assesses whether 
there is objective evidence that financial assets 
not carried at fair value through profit or loss are 
impaired. Financial assets are impaired when 
objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event 
has occurred after initial recognition and that the 

Significant Accounting Policies
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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event has an impact on the future cash flows that 
can be estimated reliably.

The Bank considers evidence of impairment at both 
specific asset and collective levels. All individually 
significant financial assets are assessed for 
specific impairment. All significant assets not 
found to be specifically impaired are collectively 
assessed for impairment that has been incurred 
but not identified.

The Bank creates a specific provision for 
impairment when there is objective evidence that 
it will not be able to collect all amounts due. The 
amount of the provision is the difference between 
the carrying amount and the recoverable amount, 
calculated as the present value of expected future 
cash flows, including amounts recoverable from 
guarantees and collateral, discounted based on 
the original effective interest rate at inception of 
the advance.

The aggregate impairment loss is recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive income. When a loan 
is uncollectible, it is written off against the related 
provision for impairment. Subsequent recoveries 
are credited to the statement of comprehensive 
income.

The Bank writes off advances once all reasonable 
attempts at collection have been made and there 
is no realistic prospect of recovering outstanding 
amounts.

Other impairment requirements that exceed the 
objective impairment calculation are dealt with 
in a general risk reserve as an appropriation of 
retained income.

The Bank credits impairment on the release 
of previous impairment, if the amount of the 
impairment subsequently decreases due to an 
event occurring after the write down.

Derecognition
Advances from Bank funds are derecognised when 
the contractual rights to receive cash flows from 
them have been discharged, through the loans 
being fully repaid or written off.

Fair values:
The fair values of all financial instruments are 
substantially identical to the carrying amounts 
reflected in the statement of financial position.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated 
into the functional currency, Pula, using the 
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the 
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting 
date are translated to Pula at the exchange rate 
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary assets and 
liabilities that are measured in terms of historical 
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are 
translated to Pula at foreign exchange rates ruling 
at the dates the fair value was determined. Foreign 
exchange differences arising on translation are 
recognised in the statement of comprehensive 
income.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
For purposes of the cash flow statement, cash 
and cash equivalents comprise notes and coins on 
hand and balances with less than 90 days maturity 
from the date of acquisition, including cash and 
cash balances with other banks.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised 
cost on the statement of financial position.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
The carrying values of assets are reviewed at each 
reporting date to determine whether there is any 
indication of impairment. If any such indication 
exists and where the carrying values exceeds 
recoverable amount, the assets are written down 
to their recoverable amount. The recoverable 
amount is the greater of net selling price and value 
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated 
future cash flows are discounted to their present 
values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value 
of money and the risks specific to the asset. 
Impairment losses are recognised in the statement 
of comprehensive income.

Significant Accounting Policies
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, 
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the 
revised estimate of its recoverable amount so that 
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined 
had no impairment loss been recognised for the 
asset in the prior years. A reversal of impairment 
loss is recognised as income immediately unless 
the relevant asset is carried at a re-valued amount 
in which case the reversal of the impairment is 
treated as an increase in the revaluation reserve.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Interest income and expense
Interest income and expense on all instruments 
measured are on amortised cost and are recognised 
in the statement of comprehensive income on 
the accruals basis, applying the effective interest 
method. The effective interest method is a method 
of calculating the amortised cost of a financial 
asset or a financial liability and of allocating the 
interest income or expense over the relevant 
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that 
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or 
payments through the expected life of the financial 
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period 
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset 
or financial liability. When calculating the effective 
interest rate, the bank estimates cash flows 
considering all contractual terms of the financial 
instrument, but does not consider future credit 
losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or 
received between parties to the contract that 
are an integral part of the effective interest rate, 
transactions costs and all other premiums and 
discounts. When a financial asset has been written 
down as a result of an impairment loss, interest 
income is recognised using the effective rate of 
interest use to discount the future cash flows for 
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Fee and commission income
The Bank recognises fee and commission 
income on an accruals basis when the service is 
rendered. Loan origination fees are recognised 
over the period of the loan, together with related 
direct costs. Commissions and fees arising from 
negotiating or participating in the negotiation of 

a transaction for a third party are recognised on 
completion of the underlying transaction. Portfolio 
and other management advisory and services fees 
are recognised based on the applicable service 
contract, usually on a time proportionate basis.

Rental income
Rental income from investment property leased 
out under an operating lease is recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease. Lease 
incentives granted are recognised as an integral 
part of the total rental income.

PENSION FUND
The Bank operates a defined contribution pension 
fund for its entire permanent citizen staff. This 
fund is registered under the Pension and Provident 
Funds Act (Chapter 27:03). The Bank contributes 
to the fund 16% of the pension able earnings of 
the members, and the employees contribute an 
additional 4% of their pensionable earnings. The 
Bank’s contributions are charged to the statement 
of comprehensive income in the year in which they 
accrue. Other than the regular contributions made 
in terms of the Rules of the Fund, the Bank does 
not have any further liability to the fund.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Parties are considered to be related if one party 
has the ability to control the other party or exercise 
significant influence over the other in making 
financial or operating decisions. A number of 
transactions are entered into with related parties in 
the normal course of business. These transactions 
are carried out under normal commercial terms 
and conditions at market rates, as summarised in 
the notes to the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS
Dividends proposed at the reporting date are 
shown as a component of capital and funding.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial Assets
The Bank’s major financial assets are balances 
with other banks, market placements, advances 
from the Bank’s funds and accounts receivable.

Significant Accounting Policies
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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Recognition
The Bank initially recognises loans and advances, 
deposits/market placements, securities issued 
and subordinated liabilities on the date that 
they are originated. All other financial assets 
are recognised on the trade date of the Bank 
becoming party to the contractual provisions of 
the instruments.

Derecognition
The Bank derecognises a financial asset when 
the contractual rights to cash flows from the 
asset expire or it transfers the rights to receive 
contractual cash flows on the asset.

Financial liabilities and capital funding 
instruments
Financial liabilities are classified according to the 
substance of the contractual arrangement entered 
into. The Bank’s major liabilities are long term 
borrowings and accounts payable.

Recognition
The Bank initially recognises financial liabilities 
when the Bank has a legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of the Bank becoming party 
to the contractual provisions of the liability.

Derecognition
The Bank derecognises a financial liability when its 
contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled 
or expired.

Significant financial liabilities include long term 
interest bearing borrowings, balances owed on 
funds administered by the bank, interest subsidy 
payable and other accounts payable. These are 
stated at their nominal value. Borrowings are 
recognised initially at fair value of consideration 
received net of transaction costs incurred. 
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised 
cost; any difference between the proceeds net 
of transaction costs and the redemption value is 
recognised in the statement of comprehensive 
income over the period of the borrowings using the 
effective rate yield method.

Capital funding comprises un-recallable capital 
which is recorded at the amount of proceeds 
received.

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the 
net amount reported in the statement of financial 
position when there is a legally enforceable right 
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an 
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on net basis 
only when permitted by the accounting standards, 
or for gains or losses arising from a group of 
similar transactions such as the Bank’s foreign 
currency assets and liabilities.

AMORTISED COST
The amortised cost of a financial asset or liability is 
the amount at which the financial asset or liability 
is measured at initial recognition, minus principal 
repayments, minus any reduction for impairment.

FAIR VALUE
The determination of fair values is based on 
quoted market prices for instruments traded in 
active markets. For all other financial instruments 
fair value is determined by using valuation 
techniques.

LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
The Bank recognises liabilities, including 
provisions when it has a present legal or 
constructive obligation as a result of past events, 
and it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate 
of the amount of the obligation can be made. No 
provision is recognised when the possibility of the 
liability crystallising is uncertain, if it depends on a 
future contingent event or if the obligation cannot 
be measured with sufficient reliability. In such 
cases a contingent liability is disclosed.

Significant Accounting Policies
for the year ended 31 March 2011



N
at

io
na

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t B
an

k 
| A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t |

 2
01

1

48

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2011

2011 2010

P’000 P’000

1 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash 5 5

Current and call accounts 60 233 35 838

60 238 35 843

2 INVESTMENT SECURITIES

African Alliance Unit Trust 88 83

Stanbic Unit Trust 956 32 802

Placements with other banks 11 416 19 313

12 460 52 198

Maturity profile

On demand to one month 12 460 52 198

The above placements are part of the Bank’s money market activities and are 
measured at cost.

 3 OTHER INVESTMENTS

Unlisted investments:

Investment in Propcorp (Proprietary) Limited.
(representing 33.33% of the issued shares)
Balance at beginning of year 2 383 2 348

Increase in shareholding 104 35

Impairment of investment (760) -

Balance at end of year 1 727 2 383

Shares in Development House (Proprietary) Limited

5 000 shares of P1 each at cost (representing 100% of issued shares) 5 5

          1 732 2 388

The directors evaluate the fair value of the investments on an annual basis for impairment. 

Development House (Proprietary) Limited is a dormant company.

Propcorp (Proprietary) Limited is a property investment company and the Bank holds 33.33% voting rights on this company. 
During the period under review, management undertook a fair valuation of the entity and realised the impairment as reflected 
above. 

4 OTHER ASSETS

Interest subsidy receivable from Botswana Government 85 117

Other receivables and prepayments 12 266 8 964

Balance at the end of the year 12 351 9 081
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2011

2011 2010

P’000 P’000

5 LOANS AND ADVANCES

Gross amount

Customers 964 504 910 985

Staff 57 902 54 375

1 022 406 965 360

Less: Allowance for impairment (90 061)      (69 183)

Carrying amount 932 345 896 177

Loans have been advanced from the bank funds to its customers and staff for 
terms ranging from 1 to 25 years at varying interest rates.

Advances to ex-employees are re priced to market rates when they leave the 
Bank. These balances formed a small proportion of total advances as at 31 
March 2011.

Off-balance sheet:

Loan disbursement commitments 51 208 8 549

Guarantees 9 466 8 683

60 674 17 232

Loan disbursement commitments comprise of committed advance funds to customers at year end, but not yet disbursed 
at that date. Such commitments are normally made for a fixed period and are subject to certain conditions. The bank may 
withdraw from its obligations for the undrawn portion of the advances approved. The funds will be provided from both 
internally and externally generated funds

6 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Commercial land and buildings

Investment property at fair value P’000

Balance at 31 March 2010 13 440

Additions 92

Increase in fair value 1 468

Balance at 31 March 2011 15 000

Total investment properties 31 March 2010 13 440

Total investment properties 31 March 2011 15 000
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2011

6 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The fair value of the bank’s investment properties at 31 March 2011 was determined by an independent valuer, Willy Kathurima Associates 

(2010: Willy Kathurima Associates) on instructions of the Board of Directors. The valuations were arrived by reference to open market 

values as defined in the International Assets Valuations Standards of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). Details of the 

investments properties are available at the registered office of the bank. 

Property rentals earned by the bank from the investment property, all of which are leased out under operating leases, amounted to 

P873 005 (2010: P808 735)

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Freehold 
Commercial 

land and 
buildings

Leasehold 
Commercial 

land and 
buildings

Freehold 
Residential 

land and 
buildings

Leasehold 
Residential 

land and 
buildings

Motor 
vehicles

Office 
furniture 

and 
equipment

Total

COST/VALUATION

Balance at 01 April 2010 34 234 2 430 3 879 925 60 9 751 51 279

Additions 1 259 - - - - 2 214  3 473

Revaluation (5 471) 148 2 220 80 - - (3 023))

Disposals - - - - - (33) (33)

Balance at 31 March 2011 30 022 2 578 6 099 1 005 60 11 932 51 696

DEPRECIATION

Balance at 01 April 2010             1 161                   38                   -                  -             36            5 556 6 791 

Charge for the year               388                   12 15 4 -            2 946 3 365 

Revaluation adjustment (1 545) (30) (9) (4) - - (1 588))

Disposals - - - -  -  (30)   (30)

Balance at 31 March 2010             4                   20 6 -           36 8 472 8 538

Net book value

31 March 2011 30 018 2 558 6 093 1 005           24 3 460 43 158

31 March 2010           33 073              2 392            3 879              925           24            4 197 44 490 

Details of the commercial and residential land and buildings are available at the registered office of the bank. Revaluation of property 
plant and equipment is done every 3 years as management consider the market to be stable. Revaluation was performed in 2011. 
Proceeds on disposed assets amounted to P42 000 (2010: P112 000).

2011 2010

P’000 P’000

8 UN - RECALLABLE CAPITAL

Received from the Government of the Republic of Botswana:

General funds 77 689 77 689

This consists of non repayable funds invested by the Government in the Bank.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2011

2011 2010

P’000 P’000

9 RESERVES

9.1 General and asset revaluation reserves

Fixed property revaluation reserve arising on revaluation of land and buildings 25 976 27 412

General risk reserve 9 682 9 682

35 659 37 094

9.2 Dividend reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 14 458 12 688

Paid during the year (14 458) (12 688)

Proposed dividend 12 165 14 458

Balance at the end of the year 12 165 14 458
The proposed dividend which is based on 25% (2010: 25%) of the bank’s net income for the 
year, is expected to be approved by the Board of Directors.

10 BANK OVERDRAFT

BancABC 54 934 13 596

The facility is unsecured and attracts interest at the rate of 3% below the prime rate. The 
facility expired in July 2010 and was renegotiated for a further period of one year.

11 LONG TERM BORROWINGS

Loan funds comprising:

Secured Bank Loan:

Standard Chartered Bank Loan (note 11.1) 6 829 10 479

Listed Bond programme:

National Development Bank 001 Bond (note 11.2) 167 910 167 910

National Development Bank Fixed Rate Note (BPOMAS) (note 11.3) - 30 269

167 910 198 179

Development loans:

African Development Bank Loan (ADB) (note 11.4) 112 320 122 920

International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (IBRD) (note 11.5) - 373

112 320 123 293

Other unsecured loans:

Government loans (note 11.6) 18 867 19 894

African Banking Corporation (note 11.7) 30 031 40 493

Accrued interest 33 25

Total long term borrowings 335 990 392 363
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11 LONG TERM BORROWINGS (continued)

11.1 Standard Chartered Bank loan facility bears interest at a fixed rate of 12.85% per annum, is payable quarterly. The loan matures on 
08th November 2012.

11.2 The National Development Bank 001 Bond is part of a BWP 180 million note programme of which BWP 100 million was issued on 
29 August 2007 and BWP 65 million in December 2008. The bond attracts fixed interest of 11.25% per annum, payable bi-annually 
in February and August every year. The bond has a redemption date of 1 August 2017. The bond is listed on the Botswana Stock 
Exchange and is subscribed by corporate investors. 

11.3 National Development Bank BPOMAS Bond was a programme repayable over 3 years maturing on the 1st of March 2012. The note 
incurred interest at 10.75% per annum. This bond was settled in advance of the maturity date.

11.4 The African Development Bank Loan, denominated in Japanese Yen, is repayable over 10 years in bi-annual instalments. The loan 
has an interest rate of 2.775% per annum on the Japanese Yen equivalent.

11.5 The development loan from IBRD was repayable over 15 years in bi-annual payments and incurred interest at 10% per annum.
This loan was settled during the period.

11.6 Long term loans from the Government of the Republic of Botswana are repayable over 25 years in equal half yearly instalments.  
The loan agreements provided for an initial two year grace period during which interest was capitalised. The loans bear interest at 
rates varying between 6% and 12.1% per annum.

11.7 The African Banking Corporation loan is payable over four years in quarterly instalments and it matures on 26 August 2013. The loan 
attracts interest at the floating rate of prime minus 3%.

2011 2010

P’000 P’000

12 PROVISIONS

Rent provisions 724 724

13 OTHER LIABILITIES

Accrued expenses 11 013 4 279

Audit fees provision 500 524

Tenant rentals prepaid 114 120

Merger 946 946

Staff accruals 5 446 5 983

Agency fees: Foot and Mouth Disease Relief Fund - 234

18 019 12 086

14 INTEREST INCOME

Loans and advances 150 121 151 098

Government interest subsidy 2 942 1 847

Advance to Metsef and BancABC 4 941 5 441

Deposit Interest Income 6 213 5 170

164 217 163 556
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2011 2010

P’000 P’000

15 INTEREST EXPENSE

National Development Bank 001Bond 18 598 18 602

National Development Bank BPOMAS fixed rate note 2 475 3 225

African Development Bank long term loan 3 703 3 921

Loans from Government of the Republic of Botswana 2 204 2 317

Development loans 1 364 4 625

Bank overdrafts 5 043 4 564

33 387 37 254

16 FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Foot and Mouth Disease Fund 3 846 4 060

Loan administration fees 7 351 6 668

11 197 10 728

17 OTHER INCOME

Investment property rental income 3 052 2 058

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 42 78

Profit on disposal of investment properties - 60

Foreign currency losses 5 228

Recoveries 1 133 -

Net gain on fair value of investment properties 1 468 1 184

Other miscellaneous 579 455

6 279 4 063

18 PERSONNEL EXPENSES

Pension contributions 2 683 2 467

Staff costs 32 549 29 491 

35 232 31 958

Number of employees 147 144
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2011 2010

P’000 P’000

19 OTHER EXPENSES

19.1 Depreciation 3 365 2 602

19.2 Impairment of investments 760 -

19.3 Other expenses

Administration expenses 20 323 15 925

Auditors’ remuneration 589 550

Board of Directors fees and expenses 183 191

Operating leases – Motor vehicles 2 002 1 816

Professional and management consultants’ fees 1 717 767

24 814 19 249

20 CHARGE FOR IMPAIRMENT OF ADVANCES

Specific allowance for impairment 24 604 3 755

Non- specific allowance for impairment (3 734) 4 995

Recoveries - (32)

Write offs during the year 14 603 20 735

Charge per statement of comprehensive income 35 473 29 453

20.1 Movement in specific allowance for impairment

Balance at the beginning of the year 59 231 55 485

Charge for the year 39 215 24 481

Write off during the year (14 603) (20 735)

Balance at the end of the year 83 843 59 231

20.2 Movement in portfolio allowance for impairment

Balance at the beginning of the year 9 952 6 703

Movement for the year (3 734) 3 249

Balance at the end of the year 6 218 9 952

Total allowance for impairment at end of the year 90 061 69 183
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2011 2010

P’000 P’000

21 TAXATION

Under the provisions of the Income Tax Act (Chapter 52:01), National Development Bank is 
exempt from income tax.

22 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure authorised by the Board of Directors and contracted for amounted to: 414 -

23 FUNDS ADMINISTERED BY THE BANK

The bank administered funds on behalf of the Government of Botswana. The total assets 
of this fund amounted to P105 million (2010: P108 million).

24 LEASE COMMITMENTS

The bank has entered into a number of operating leases for the rental of motor vehicles 
and rental of premises.

The amounts due as at end of the year in terms of these agreements were:

Motor Vehicles – Executive management

Due within one year 556 477

Due thereafter 1 266 566

1 822 1 043

Motor Vehicles – Business use

Due within one year 519 638

Due thereafter 149 720

668 1 358

Office Rental

Due within one year 469 444

Due thereafter 490 869

959 1 313

These commitments will be financed out of internally generated funds.
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25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk Management

National Development Bank (NDB) has various risk exposures emanating from the daily operations.  The key risks 
are: 

Credit / counterparty risk•	

Liquidity risk•	

Interest rate risk•	

Foreign exchange risk•	

Operational Risk•	

 It is the Board of Directors’ responsibility to ensure that there is an effective risk management framework in place and 
sufficient controls to mitigate the eventualities of unwarranted exposure.  The Board of Directors have established the 
Audit Committee and Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO) to ensure that there is sufficient financial risk identification, 
measurement, monitoring and mitigation and reporting to shareholders. To this end the Audit Committee has approved 
policies, and set limits and controls for the various facets of risk management.

 The Asset and Liability Management (ALM) framework has been put in place to ensure that the bank’s profitability 
is sustainable and resilient. This requires the Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO) to take a long term approach, 
incorporating internal and external expectations and factors in its strategic decisions.

 On a continuous basis, the Audit Committee reviews the risk management policies of the bank to ensure that they are 
relevant to the current market situation and consistent with the bank’s strategic objectives.

 Credit Risk

 Credit risk is risk of financial loss to the bank if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet 
its contractual obligations. This risk arises principally from the bank’s loans and advances to customer, investment 
securities and other market placements. 

 Credit risk is subject to a variety of external factors. These may include structural changes in the economy, deterioration 
in the performance of concerned sector, changes in anticipated financial performance by the counterparty.

 Loans and advances to customers

 The bank’s advances to customers contribute 87% of total assets at P1 077 284 000 as at 31 March 2011 (2010: 85%). 

 The Board of Directors has approved the credit policy that sets a framework for loan assessment, monitoring, collection 
and valuation.

 To the extent possible, credit risk policy addresses risk adjusted pricing and risk adjusted capital allocation 
methodologies. The Credit Risk policy sets limits for credit concentration. Credit concentration levels by sector 
are constantly monitored at the Assets and Liabilities Committee (ALCO), and remedial strategies to dilute the 
concentrations considered. 
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25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Loans and advances to customers (continued)

A rigorous assessment of both specific and general portfolio is carried out every quarter. The methodology applied is in 
line with the requirements of IAS 39.

Non-performing loans, being capital and interest of loans that are in arrears in excess of six months, comprised 31% 
or P311 million (2010:16% or P149 million) of the loan book. A specific provision of P83.8 million (2010: P59.2 million) 
was raised at 31 March 2011 based on a comparison of carrying amounts against the present value of recoverable cash 
flows.

Investment securities and other money market placements

ALCO has approved placement and settlement limits with which the bank should make money market placements 
and settle foreign currency trades.  The limits are adhered to at all times and compliance to the limits is monitored by 
ALCO on a monthly basis.  The placement limits and settlement limits are reviewed annually by ALCO using the various 
counterparty Annual Reports, external credit ratings, and any ad hoc information deemed appropriate for credit limit 
sanctioning.

The bank’s quantitative credit risk assessments and classification of assets and liabilities are disclosed in notes 25.4 to 
25.11 of these financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the bank will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. To mitigate 
against liquidity risk, ALCO has in place a Liquidity Risk Policy which has set limits on the minimum proportion of funds 
available to meet loan drawdown and funding of maturing borrowings.  

Maturity Gap Analysis ensures that the bank plans liquidity requirements around the maturities.  The matching and 
controlled mismatching of contractual maturities of assets and liabilities is a critical function which the Treasury 
division is responsible for on a day to day basis.

ALCO has established a liquidity funding crisis plan to augment the liquidity risk policy.  The bank has a line of credit in 
the form of a Note program initially established for BWP 180 million, of which the bank has currently utilised BWP 168 
million (2010: P168 million).  The bank has other lines of credit with various financial institutions.

The liquidity gap analysis as at 31st March 2010 is detailed in note 25. 1
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25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Interest rate risk

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will affect the bank’s income or the value of its financial 
instruments.  

As with liquidity risk management, the Board has set limits on the level of mismatch on interest rate repricing that 
may be undertaken.  The Repricing Gap Analysis ensures that the bank should not have an asset sensitive or liability 
sensitive position in any time bucket that is not consistent with the strategic view of ALCO.  This is monitored by ALCO 
and Treasury on a daily basis.

NDB has fixed rate liabilities and seeks to lend on a fixed rate basis.  The bank has a very small portion of loans and 
advances to customers at variable rates.   

The interest rate repricing analysis as at 31st March 2010 is detailed in note 25.3 .

Foreign Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk that changes in foreign exchange rates will affect the bank’s income or the value of its financial 
instruments.

While the bank does not actively participate in the foreign exchange market, it has exposures to the Japanese Yen 
(JPY).  The bank occasionally purchases foreign currency primarily for payment of suppliers which invoice in foreign 
currencies.  

The bank has a long-term JPY denominated liability from African Development Bank (ADB) against which it has created 
a similar and offsetting asset by lending to BANC ABC, formely, African Banking Corporation (ABC). 

The bank has a Foreign Exchange Risk policy which has set the Net Open Positions per currency, and the Overall Net 
Open Position for the entire bank.  These currency position limits are actively managed by Treasury division.  All foreign 
exchange positions were within limit for the entire financial year.

The concentration of Currency risk as at 31st March 2011 is detailed in note 25.2.

Operational risk:

Operational risk, inherent in all business activities, is the potential for financial and reputational loss arising from 
failures in internal controls, operational processes or the systems that support them. It can occur in all the bank’s 
businesses and includes errors, omissions, natural disasters and deliberate acts such as fraud. The goal of operational 
risk management is to balance cost of control and risk within the constraints of the risk appetite of the bank and to be 
consistent with the prudent management required of a financial institution. It is recognised that operational risk can 
never be entirely eliminated. Accordingly, the bank continues to invest in risk mitigation such as contingency planning 
and incident management and insurance, where appropriate. Independent checks on operational risk issues are 
undertaken by internal audit. Operational risk is monitored by the Audit Committee.

Conclusion

Risk Management initiatives can never be exhaustive.  To the extent we consider salient, this annual report has reported 
on major risks and processes undertaken to abate financial loss.  The bank has representatives on the Basel II National 
Task Force.  In addition the bank aims to implement a dedicated Risk and Compliance Management Division in the next 
financial year to consolidate the risk management operations.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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25.1 Liquidity risk

Maturities of assets and liabilities 0-1 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over 5

Month months Months years years Total

P’000 P’000 P’000 P’000 P’000 P’000

Assets

Balances with other banks 60 238 - - - - 60 238

Other market placements            12 460 - - - - 12 460

Other investments - - 1 732 1 732

Other assets 85 12 266 - - 12 351

Advances to customers 23 300 9 440 56 271 400 750 442 584 932 345

Investment properties - - - - 15 000 15 000

Property, plant and equipment - - - - 43 158 43 158

Total assets 95 998 9 525 68 537 400 750 502 474 1 077 284

Liabilities and equity

Long term borrowings 1 558   3 881   33 797      122 775     173 979 335 990

Interest subsidy repayable - - - - -

Other liabilities           56 356 1 848 12 734 1 910 829 73 677

Equity - - - - 667 617 667 617

Total liabilities and equity 57 914 5 729 46 531 124 685 842 425 1 077 284

Net liquidity gap 38 084 3 796 22 006 276 065 (339 951) -

As at 31 March 2010

Total assets 111 511 177 27 521 427 963 486 445 1 053 617

Total liabilities and equity (15 574) (3 903) (43 196) (125 981) (864 963) (1 053 617)

Net liquidity gap 95 937 (3 726) (15 675) 301 982 (378 518) -
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Japanese USD Botswana

Yen Dollars Pula Total

P’000 P’000 P’000 P’000

25.2 Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency exposure

Assets

Balances with banks 13 4 983            55 242 60 238

Other market placements - -             12 460             12 460

Other investments - - 1 732 1 732

Other assets - - 12 351 12 351

Advances to customers           119 604 - 812 741 932 345

Investment properties held for sale - - - -

Investment properties - - 15 000 15 000

Property, plant and equipment - - 43 158 43 158

119 617 4 983 952 684 1 077 284

Liabilities and equity

Long term borrowings 112 313 - 223 677          335 990

Other liabilities - - 73 677 73 677

Equity - - 667 617 667 617

Total liabilities and equity 112 313 - 964 971 1 077 284

Net exposure 7 304 4 983 (12 287) -

As at 31 March 2010

Total assets 128 569 - 925 048 1 053 617

Total liabilities and equity 122 912 - 930 705 1 053 617

Net exposure 5 657 - (5 657) -



N
at

io
na

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t B
an

k 
| A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t |

 2
01

1

61

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2011

Japanese USD Botswana

Yen Dollars Pula Total

P’000 P’000 P’000 P’000

25.2 Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency exposure

Assets

Balances with banks 13 4 983            55 242 60 238

Other market placements - -             12 460             12 460

Other investments - - 1 732 1 732

Other assets - - 12 351 12 351

Advances to customers           119 604 - 812 741 932 345

Investment properties held for sale - - - -

Investment properties - - 15 000 15 000

Property, plant and equipment - - 43 158 43 158

119 617 4 983 952 684 1 077 284

Liabilities and equity

Long term borrowings 112 313 - 223 677          335 990

Other liabilities - - 73 677 73 677

Equity - - 667 617 667 617

Total liabilities and equity 112 313 - 964 971 1 077 284

Net exposure 7 304 4 983 (12 287) -

As at 31 March 2010

Total assets 128 569 - 925 048 1 053 617

Total liabilities and equity 122 912 - 930 705 1 053 617

Net exposure 5 657 - (5 657) -

2011 2010

P’000 P’000

25.3 Interest rate risk

Fixed rate instruments

Assets Loans and advances 807 864 834 960                

Fixed deposits 20 537 -                 

Liabilities Long term borrowings (335 990)            (392 363)             

Total 492 411               442 597 

Variable rate instruments
Assets Loans and advances 124 481 61 217                 

Call accounts 61 682 35 844                 
Unit Trust investments 12 460 52 199                 

Liabilities Overdraft (54 934)              (13 596)

Total 143 689 135 664                

Variable Rate Instruments

A change in interest rate of 100 basis points in the annualised percentage rate would cause a change in interest income 
of P 1436 890 (2010: P 1 356 640)

As indicated above, the majority of the Bank’s interest bearing assets and liabilities are on a fixed rate basis. 
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2011 2010

P’000 P’000

25.4 Credit Risk exposure relating to statement of financial position assets

Placements with other Banks - current accounts 60 238         35 844

Stanbic Bank Botswana Limited 37 794 998

Barclays Bank Botswana Limited 1 519 8 631

Standard Chartered Bank Botswana Limited 4 008 8 978

First National Bank Botswana Limited 16 903 17 234

African Banking Corporation of Botswana 14 3

Placements with other banks - term deposits 11 416       19 314

Bank Gaborone Limited 614 5 024

African Banking Corporation of Botswana 10 802 14 290

African Alliance Unit Trust Investments 88 83 

Stanbic Money Market Investments 956       32 801 

Other Investments 1 732          2 388 

Interest receivable 85    176 

Prepayments and other receivables 12 266          8 903 

Advances from the Bank at amortised cost 1 022 405      965 366 

Total assets with credit risk 1 109 186 1 064 875 

25.5 Credit Risk exposure relating to off- balance sheet assets

Loan Commitments 51 208 8 549

Loan Guarantees 9 467 8 683

60 675   17 232 
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2011 2010

P’000 P’000

25.4 Credit Risk exposure relating to statement of financial position assets

Placements with other Banks - current accounts 60 238         35 844

Stanbic Bank Botswana Limited 37 794 998

Barclays Bank Botswana Limited 1 519 8 631

Standard Chartered Bank Botswana Limited 4 008 8 978

First National Bank Botswana Limited 16 903 17 234

African Banking Corporation of Botswana 14 3

Placements with other banks - term deposits 11 416       19 314

Bank Gaborone Limited 614 5 024

African Banking Corporation of Botswana 10 802 14 290

African Alliance Unit Trust Investments 88 83 

Stanbic Money Market Investments 956       32 801 

Other Investments 1 732          2 388 

Interest receivable 85    176 

Prepayments and other receivables 12 266          8 903 

Advances from the Bank at amortised cost 1 022 405      965 366 

Total assets with credit risk 1 109 186 1 064 875 

25.5 Credit Risk exposure relating to off- balance sheet assets

Loan Commitments 51 208 8 549

Loan Guarantees 9 467 8 683

60 675   17 232 

25.6 Distribution of loans and Advances by credit quality Carrying Collateral Carrying Collateral 

Amount Value Amount Value

2011 2011 2010 2010

P’000 P’000 P’000 P’000

Neither past due nor impaired 518 431 N/A 757 904 N/A

Past due but not impaired 192 437 250 982 58 585 112 108

Individually impaired 311 538 450 709 148 871 106 744

Gross loans and advances 1022 406 965 360

Less: Allowance for impairment (90 061) (69 183)

Net Loans and advances 932 345 896 177

25.7 Rescheduled/ Renegotiated/Restructured Loans

Restructured activities include extended payment arrangements, approved external management plans, modification and 
deferral of payments. Following restructuring, previously overdue customer account is reset to normal status and managed 
together with other similar accounts. Restructuring policies and practices are based on indicators or criteria which, in the 
judgement of local management, indicate that payment will most likely continue. These policies are kept under continuous 
review.Restructuring is most commonly applied to term loans. Renegotiated loans that would otherwise be past due or 
impaired are analysed below:

Carrying Security Carrying Security 

Amount Value Amount Value

2011 2011   2010 2010

P’000 P’000 P’000 P’000

Age of loan arrears before renegotiation  

30-60 days 4 039 9 363 - -

60-90 days - - - -

90 days+ 14 596 15 180

4 039 9 363 14 596 15 180
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25.8    Distribution of loans and Advances neither past due nor impaired

The credit quality of portfolio loans and advances that were neither  past due nor impaired subject  to the Bank’s internal rating 

system was as follows:

2011 2010

P’000 P’000

Individuals 291 915 441 588

Companies 104 868 183 199

Other Financial Institutions 121 648 133 117

518 431 757 904

25.9  Loans and Advances past due but not impaired: age analysis

As at 31 March 2011

(P’000) 0-1 1-2 2-3 Over 3 Total Collateral

Month Months Months Months Value

Individuals 101 583 8 198 1 981 7 640 119 402

Companies 52 476 186 858 19 515 73 035

154 059 8 384 2 839 27 155 192 437 250 982

As at 31 March 2010

0-1 1-2 2-3 Over 3 Total Collateral

Month Months Months Months Value

Individuals

Companies

Other Financial Institutions

1 348 - - 37 727 39 075

- - - 19 510 19 510

- - - - -

1 348 - - 57 237 58 585 112 108
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25.10 Loans and advances individually impaired (continued)

As at 31 March 2011 Opening 
balance

Amounts
Recoveries

Increase/
(decrease) in Movement

Closing
Balancewritten 

off
impairments

P’000 P’000 P’000 P’000 P’000 P’000

Property 53 511 (1) (763) 16 202 68 603

Industrial 6 889 (404) 3 133 (358) 8 108

Retail 19 114 (2 416) 384 2 361 3 637 21 798

Agriculture 53 170 (4 014) 247 20 442 87 690 150 936

Commerce 12 109 ( 7 765) 502 (4 960) 14 646 14 171

Other loans and advances 4 078 (3) 4 390 40 599 47 921

Total Loans to Customers 148 871 (14 603) 1 133 24 604 162 416 311 537

Total impairment allowance 59 231 24 604 83 843

Total security held as at 31 March 2011 was P 450.7 million (2010: P106.7 million). Interest recognised on these loans amounted to 
P39.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2011 (2010: P22.8 million).

25.10 Loans and advances individually impaired (continued)

As at 31 March 2010
Opening 
balance

Amounts
Recoveries

Increase/
(decrease) in

Movement
Closing

Balancewritten 
off

impairments

P’000 P’000 P’000 P’000 P’000 P’000

Property 36 510 - - 2 229 14 772 53 511

Industrial 10 653 (471) - 162 (3 455) 6 889

Retail 32 752 (10619) - 139 (3158) 19 114 

Agriculture 49 285 (39) (32) 1 356 2 600 53 170

commerce 43 951 (9 606) - (2 229) (20 007) 12 109

Other loans and advances 2 564 - - 2 098 (584) 4 078

Total Loans to Customers 175 715 (20 735) (32) 3 755      (9832) 148 871

Total impairment allowance 55 485 3 755 59 231
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25.11  Financial assets and liabilities

31 March 2011 Note Trading
Available 

for sale
Held to 

maturity

Loans 
and 

receivables

Cash and 
bank 

balances

Other 
amortized 

cost

Total 
carrying 
amount Fair value

Cash and cash equivalents 1 - - - - 60 238 - 60 238 60 238

Investment securities 2 - - - - - - 12 460 12 460

Loans and advances 5 - - - 932 345 - - 932 345 932 345

Investment properties 6 - - - - - - 15 000 15 000

Property, plant and equipment 7 - - - - - 43 158 43 158 -

Other investments 8 - - - - - 1 732 1 732 -

Other assets 4 - - - - - 12 351 12 351 -

- - - 932 345 60 238 57 241 1 077 284 1 020 043

-

Bank Overdraft 10 - - - - 54 934 - 54 934 54 934

Long term borrowings 11 - - - - - 335 990 335 990 -

Other provisions and liabilities 12,13 - - - - - 18 743 18 743 -

- - - - 54 934 354 733 409 667 54 934

31 March 2010

Cash and cash equivalents 1 - - - - 35 843 - 35 843 35 843

Investment securities 2 - - - - - - 52 198 52 198

Loans and advances 5 - - - 896 177 - - 896 177 896 177

Investment properties 6 - - - - - - 13 440 13 440

Property, plant and equipment 7 - - - - - 44 490 44 490 -

Other investments 8 - - - - - 2 388 2 388 -

Other assets 4 - - - - - 9 081 9 081 -

- - - 896 177 35 843 55 959 1 053 617 997 658

-

Bank Overdraft 10 - - - - 13 596 - 13 596 13 596

Long term borrowings 11 - - - - - 392 363 392 363 -

Other provisions and liabilities 12,13 - - - - - 12 810 12 810 -

- - - - 13 596 405 173 418 769 13 596

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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25.11   Financial assets and liabilities (continued) 

Valuation of financial instruments

The Bank’s accounting policy on fair value measurements in discussed in accounting policy outlined on pages 14 
and 15. 

The bank measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs 
used in making the measurement:

Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument. •	

Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e., •	
derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices in active 
markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are 
considered less than active; or other valuation techniques where all significant inputs are directly or 
indirectly observable from market data.

Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all instruments •	
where the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs 
have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued 
based on quoted prices for similar instruments where significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions 
are required to reflect differences between the instruments.

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities that are traded in active markets are based on quoted 
market prices or dealer price quotations. For all other financial instruments the bank determines fair values using 
valuation techniques.

The bank uses widely recognised valuation models for determining the fair value of common and more simple 
financial instruments, like interest rate and currency swaps that use only observable market data and require little 
management judgement and estimation. Observable prices and model inputs are usually available in the market 
for listed debt and equity securities, exchange traded derivatives and simple over the counter derivatives like 
interest rate swaps. Availability of observable market prices and model inputs reduces the need for management 
judgement and estimation and also reduces the uncertainty associated with determination of fair values. Availability 
of observable market prices and inputs varies depending on the products and markets and is prone to changes 
based on specific events and general conditions in the financial markets.

Valuation models that employ significant unobservable inputs require a higher degree of management judgement 
and estimation in the determination of fair value. Management judgement and estimation are usually required 
for selection of the appropriate valuation model to be used, determination of expected future cash flows on the 
financial instrument being valued, determination of probability of counterparty default and prepayments and 
selection of appropriate discount rates.

The bank’s assets are predominantly categorised as level 3. The exceptions being investments held in African 
Alliance Unit trusts and Stanbic Money Market Placements which are categorised as level 2.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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26 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored by Bank of Botswana on a monthly basis.

The Bank of Botswana has set the minimum requirement at 15% for capital adequacy, measured as the percentage of risk 
weighted on and off balance sheet assets relative to capital elements.

The ratio calculation involves the application of designated risk weightings based on an estimate of 

credit, market and other risk factors associated with broad categories of transactions and counterparties,

 The Bank maintains a strong a capital base and complied with all externally imposed capital requirements through out the 
period.

There were no changes to the Bank’s capital management policies during the year.

2011 2010

P’000 P’000

Tier I capital 592 981 549 605

Tier 2 capital 67 866 81 489

Total Capital 660 847
631 094

Less investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries (1 732) (2 388)

Total unimpaired Capital Funds 659 115 628 706

Risk Weighted Assets

On balance sheet assets 1 017 307 980 795

Off balance sheet assets 35 070 12 957

Total risk weighted assets 1 052 377 993 752

Capital adequacy ratio 63% 63%

Regulatory capital adequacy ratio 15% 15%
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27       JUDGEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The Bank makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 
financial year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Bank regularly 
reviews it’s loan portfolio and makes judgements in determining whether an impairment loss should be recognised in 
respect of observable data that may impact on future estimated cash flows. The methodology and assumptions used for 
estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss 

estimates and actual loss experience.

28 RELATED PARTIES

The bank has  related party relationships with the Botswana Government, its directors, executive officers and key 

management personnel, Propcorp (Pty) Ltd and Development House (Pty) Ltd

2011 2010

P’000 P’000

Directors and key management personnel compensation are as follows:

Board of Directors 174 148

Executive management 4 350 3 277

4 524 3 425

The bank has the following outstanding liabilities to the Government:

Loan 18 867 19 894

Interest expense on the loan amounting to P2 204 000 

(2010: P2 317 000) was incurred during the year.

Interest subsidy receivable from Botswana Government 85 117

Interest subsidy income received during the year 2 942 1 847

Investments in Propcorp (Pty) Ltd 1 727 2 383

Development House (Pty) Ltd 5 5

29 GROUP ACCOUNTS

The bank owns 100% shares of Development House (Proprietary) Limited valued at P5 000. The company is dormant. No 
consolidated accounts have been prepared as the amounts involved are insignificant.
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2011 2010

P’000 P’000

30 NET CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Current assets 60 238 35 843

Cash 5 5

Current and call accounts 60 233 35 838

Current liabilities

Bank overdraft (54 934) (13 596)

Net cash and cash equivalents 5 304 22 247

30.1 BANK GUARANTEES

African Banking Corporation of Botswana 

Bank account held as security over the credit facility- 9 511 9 003

Stanbic Bank Botswana Limited 

Bank account held as security over the credit facility- 22 796 -

First National Bank of Botswana Limited

Scheme agreement resolution over Wesbank assets- 2 000 -
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31 NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS NOT YET EFFECTIVE

At the date of authorisation of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2011, the following standards 

and interpretations were in issue but not yet effective.

IAS 24: Related Party Disclosures: •	 The new standard requires a reporting entity to disclose transactions with 
its related parties and relationships between parents and subsidiaries irrespective of whether there have been 
transactions between those related parties. This standard will be incorporated into the financial statements  in the 
2012 financial year.

IFRS 7 amendment: Transfer of financial assets:•	  The new standard requires a reporting entity to additionally disclose 
the transfer of financial assets that are not derecognised entirely and derecognised entirely but for which the entity 
retains continuing involvement. The revision, which becomes mandatory for the bank’s 2012 financial statements, is 
not expected to have any impact on the financial statements.

IFRS 9: IFRS 9 addresses the initial measurement and classification of financial assets and will replace the relevant •	
sections of IAS 39. There are two options under IFRS 9 in respect of classification of financial assets, namely, financial 
assets measured at amortised cost or at fair value. Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when the business 
model is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and when they give rise to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. All other financial assets are measured at fair value. 
Embedded derivatives are no longer separated from hybrid contracts that have a financial asset host. The impact on 
the 2014 financial statements is not expected to be significant.

IFRIC 14: IAS 19 requires certain criteria to be met before an entity may recognise an asset in respect of a defined •	
benefit plan. IFRIC 14 provides additional guidance on how these criteria should be interpreted, in particular where 
the plan requires minimum contributions to be made (regardless of the surplus). In terms of the Pension Funds Act, 
an entity operating a defined benefit plan is required to submit a scheme to the Registrar of Pension Funds, setting 
out the contributions which will be made to eliminate its statutory deficit.  This is a minimum funding requirement 
to cover an existing shortfall for past service which will be dealt with in accordance with IFRIC 14. The 2012 financial 
statements are not expected to be impacted as the bank does not currently operate a defined benefit plan.

IAS 12 amendment:•	  The amendment introduces an exception to the general measurement requirements of IAS 12 
Income Taxes in respect of investment properties measured at fair value. The measurement of deferred tax assets 
and liabilities, in this limited circumstance, is based on a rebuttable presumption that the carrying amount of the 
investment property will be recovered entirely through sale. The presumption can be rebutted only if the investment 
property is depreciable and held within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the asset’s 
economic benefits over the life of the asset. The revision, which becomes mandatory for the group’s 2014 financial 
statements, is not expected to have any impact on the financial statements of the group.
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